
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
WHAT IS A BUY-IN?
A ‘buy-in’ is effectively an insurance  
contract bought by a pension scheme  
where, in exchange for an upfront lump sum  
(a premium), the insurer will provide an  
income that exactly matches the benefit 
payments to those covered by the contract. 

Under a buy-in, the policy is an asset which 
belongs to the Scheme and is not assigned 
to individual members. The Trustee of the 
Scheme remains responsible for paying 
benefits to all members. It does not affect 
the way in which any members receive their 
pension or change any of the benefits they 
are due from the Scheme. 

Its purpose is to reduce the risk of the Scheme 
not having enough money to provide the 
pensions it has promised to members, which 
could happen if future investment returns 
on the Scheme’s assets are lower than 
expected and/or our members live longer than 
expected. The buy-in policy increases the 
security of members’ benefits, which is the 
Trustee’s main priority. Buy-in policies are an 
increasingly common investment decision by 
pension scheme trustees, with around  
100 transactions each year.

WILL I STILL BE A MEMBER OF THE SCHEME?
Yes. A buy-in transaction does not change  
the position of any individual member.  
All members remain members of the Scheme. 
The benefit of the insurance policy belongs 
to the Scheme as a whole.

WILL MY CURRENT MONTHLY PENSION 
PAYMENT BE AFFECTED?
There will be no impact on your benefits in the 
Scheme as a result of this insurance contract.

WILL THIS AFFECT HOW MY BENEFITS  
ARE PAID?
Your benefits will continue to be administered 
by the Trustee and paid by the Scheme’s 
administrator, Willis Towers Watson. If you 
wish to contact the Scheme’s administrator, 
Willis Towers Watson, to discuss your 
benefits, then please contact them by email 
at sonyukpension@willistowerswatson.com, 
quoting your reference number.

HOW DID THE TRUSTEE MAKE THIS DECISION?
The Trustee, alongside the Company, have 
been considering the option of an additional 
buy-in for some time. The Company and the 
Trustee approached a number of insurers 
who provide such insurance policies to ask 
for quotations and ran a competitive tender 
process to select an insurer. The result of 
this selection process, which took place over 
the course of Q1 2021, was that the Trustee 
agreed to insure member benefits under a 
buy-in policy with Rothesay.



WHAT IS THE ADDITIONAL SECURITY
 FOR THE SCHEME?
Rothesay is a UK regulated insurer which 
specialises in insuring defined benefit pension 
scheme benefits through bulk annuity policies, 
with a market share of 20% or more since 
2009. It has insured the pensions of over 
845,000 people (including from pension 
schemes sponsored by Asda, British Airways, 
the Post Office and National Grid) and 
currently pays pensions of more than  
£200 million on average each month. It is 
regulated by the Prudential Regulation 
Authority (PRA) and the Financial Conduct 
Authority (FCA), so the Scheme will have the 
security of a policy that is subject to the strict 
regulatory regime that governs insurance 
companies in the UK. As part of the tender 
process, the Trustee considered the financial 
strength of Rothesay and believe that the 
protection provided for the Scheme’s benefits 
through Rothesay significantly reduces risk 
in the Scheme. In addition to the PRA and 
FCA regulation, there is also a ‘safety net’ 
underlying UK regulated insurers, known 
as the Financial Services Compensation 
Scheme, which is designed to provide 100% 
compensation in the unlikely event that an 
insurer is unable to pay benefits.

DOES THIS MEAN THE SCHEME IS 
WINDING-UP?
No. The Trustee will continue to run the 
Scheme, supported by the Company.  
The Scheme will hold the Rothesay buy-in 
policy along with the buy-in policy it already 
holds from Just. At some point in the future, 
the Trustee and the Company may decide  
that the Scheme should be wound up. In that 
event, the Trustee’s buy-in policies would  
be converted into individual policies which 
would be held directly in members’ names.  
The insurer – and not the Scheme or the 
Trustee – would be responsible for paying 
the pensions due. In this event, the same 
options will be available to you but you would 
be subject to the insurer’s terms, which 
may be different to what is offered through 
the Scheme. A buy-out is a common step 
following a total scheme buy-in, although  
not guaranteed. No decision has been 
taken on this.

Please let Willis Towers Watson know  
if your contact details change, or if 
you wish to update your nomination of 
beneficiaries as this helps guide the 
Trustee as to your current wishes for the 
payment of any discretionary benefits 
following your death.

Please include your reference number, 
address, telephone number and 
email address.

Just


